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Three Counties Academy Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the’Year Ended 31 August 2022

‘The trustees who are also directors of the academy trust for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present their

report’ with the financial statements of the academy trust for the year ended 31 August 2022, The trustees have

adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice apphcable to

charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and

Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effecttve 1 January 2019) and the Academles Accounts Direction issued by the Educatron )
and Skills Funding Agency

QEHC Academy Trust/Three Count:es Academy Trust exists to serve its students and commumty through the provision
of excellent education in an open and safe environment. The trust adopted MAT articles in May 2022 dunng the
accountmg period and rebranded from QEHC Academy Trust to Three Countles Academy Trust. :

Catering for students between 11 and 16, it provides a balanced and challengmg curriculum to develop academlc,
~'social and life skrlls, mcludmg a range of sporting and cultural actlvmes ~

Bemg a small school in a small town in a rural locatlon it is at the centre of 1ts commumty and thIS srtuatton develops
social responsrblhty in the pupils. :

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

" Objects and Aims : ‘ '

The Academy. Trust's object is specxﬁcally restncted to advance for the public benefit .education in the Umted

Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by estabhshmg, maintaining, carrymg 7
on, managmg, and developing a school offering a broad and balance curriculum.

‘ f‘lt is lntended that the curnculum and ethos of the Academy will place an emphas:s on, and mclude a commltment to. i

\puplls learmng about, co-operatwe values of self-help, self-responsibility, democracy, equality, equity, solidarity, u

: :\honesty, openness, social responsxblhty and caring for others with the aim of encouragmg all puplls to become better
: f,crtrzen, not only while they are pupils but dunng the rest of their lives. : S,
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Three Counties Academy Trust ‘

Report of the Trustees
~ for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

:OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES -
Objectives. Strategies and Activities
The main objectives for the year and strategies for achieving them are contamed in the academys Strategrc
lmprovement Plan 2021-2023 which is available from the academy, a summary of which is as follows: '

To further lmgrove the Quallty of Educatlon for all gugll

- To ensure curriculum strategy, plans and schemes of work are fully in place and promote a broad, balanced,

-~ and inclusive curriculum with clear regard for intent, implementation, and impact for pupils

- - To develop excellent opportumtres for learmng for all pupnls through the development of a Quality First
Teaching approach

- - :To audit educational impact and develop ongomg response to COVID catch -up for pupils .

-~ To carefully review current provision for disadvantaged pupils, amendmg and implementing as reqmred

- To carefully review current prowsron for targeted hrgh attatmng pupils, amendmg and implementing as
required - -

- To ensure outcomes match target expectatlons subject to any CoviD related adjustments

To ensure the Behaviour and Attltudes of pupils enable them to learn effectlvelv and Droqress to the next stage of
their educatlon ¢ ; e

= To ensure the attendance and punctuality of all pupils in all groups is maintained at least to .comparative -
~ national levels and that those pupils persistently absent are at a level better than national averages with. due
. regard for COVID constraints.
- ,To ensure low level dlsruptlon is minimised and pupils display a positive attitude towards their learmng

: grovrde oggortumtles for the Personal Development of all pupils to prepare them for adult llfe in Bntlsh socnety

e To ensure the mental health and well-being of puplls enables them to be resment confldent and happy

learners
- To ensure the Careers, Information, Adv1ce and Gmdance (CIAG) provided to pup\ls is of the very best avallable

To deliver h g guahtv eadershxg and Management that allow the strategrc mglementatro n to dehver the school
vision . v

- To ensure a full and robust ongoing COVID response that is fit forpurpose at each tier of operahon
- To strengthen Middle Leadership across the school
- To review and adapt as required appraisal and performance management procedures and protocols
- To ensure the mental health and well-being of staff enables them to be effective colleagues
- To audit and remedy any gaps in governance structures and. governance communication and procedures to
. ensure strength is added further to the Trust Board
" - To audit and update all policies as required ensuring all appropnate structures are in place and utilised
- - To continue with efficiency meéasures to ensure surplus budgets are set and dehvered for the duration of the
- plan and financial probity is maintained e : ,
- 'To ensure the school is inspection ready :
- To assess the viability and appropriateness of a local MAT solutlon for the Trust and partner schools .
- To review fully the appropriateness of current website provision and action as required any change
- To audit current MIS and ICT infrastructure and potential replacement platforms and hardware

. Public beneﬁt : cri
We have referred to the gu1dance contained in the Charity Commission's general gmdance on public benefit when
- reviewing our aims and ob;ectwes All our charitable activities are undertaken to further our charitable purposes for
the public benefit, :
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Three Counties Academy Trust

Report of the Trustees o
for the Year Ended 31 Auqust\ 2022

_ STRATEGIC REPORT
. Achievement and performance
Chantable activities
The summer 2022 results attained by the Trust through examination were below.expectation and pro;ectlons, in large

" part a reflection of the disruption of the examination cohort through ongomg COVID 19 impact. Key academic data ’

includes:

- Attainment 8 score 37.9
- Percentage of students achieving grade 5+ in English and mathematlcs 24%
- Percentage of students achieving grade 4+ in English 68.67% S
- Percentage of students achieving grade 4+ in mathematics 57.83%
- Percentage of students achieving grade 5+ in English 40.96%
- Percentage of students achieving grade 5+ in mathematics 30.12% : :
- Percentage of students achieving the EBacc suite of GCSE's at grade 5 or higher 9 52%
"« EBacc average point score (APS) of 3.24 wrth 32.0% of students entering the EBacc subJect suite

The school has maintained the requirement to provide online work for pupils not at school due to Covid-19.

: Dunng Autumn Term 1 medla and promotion where we operated a normal’ Open Evening offenng supplemented by
family guided tours of the secondary school throughout 0ctober Early indications reflect approx 68 pup]ls will join in -
September 2023,

\;Recrun:ment to current Year 7 was exceptlonal with 97 pupils joining. This was mainly due to a 51gn1f1cant marketlng

\ ~campaign and- continued community engagement by the school. Currently Year 11 is our smallest Year Group with 53
M pupils. The total current NoR is 385. The initial number indication for September 2023 entry is 68 pupils. PAN is 400
0 (5x80). Assummg the 68 is firm then the school will sit at 400 pupils next academic year and in doing so will have i

achleved overall PAN of 400 puplls

Covid 19 hit the school very hard during the accounting year. The effect on attendance and puplls of the . Omicron
“variant was very high with numerous large- -scale absences both whilst the requirement to self-isolate was in force and

after it was rescinded. This impacted Year 11 more than any other group within school and at times that had the

biggest impact, for example during the mock examination series. Attendance through the rest -of the school ‘was

|mpacted to a lesser: degree and enabled the school to maintain attendance above that seen natlonally

The cost of supply staffmg has been extensave this accountmg penod where we could source supply over and above

that we could provide in house. ] .

The school has mitigatedthe majority of the increase in fuel costs d‘u'e to a/period under a fixed tariff.
‘Fundralsmg activities .
“The Trust put forward a CIF bid for asbestos removal and assocnated works Wthh was unsuccessful and mtends to

lodge the same bid dunng the next CIF window.

- There have been no further fundrausmg activities and income has contmued to be srgmflcantly reduced as a result of
the pandemic effects and recovery. :

Key f1nanc1a1 performance indicators v ~
These are covered throughout the Governors Report

ek Donated goods

~ During the year, QEHC Academy Trust kmdly received £5,153 in donations whxch were spent as follows
- = £3,500 survey and planning fees for the 3G pitch application funded by Bromyard Grammar School Foundation

\ Trustees

- .'£1,353 spent on Science and Geography equipment and texts provided by the QE PFA group

- £300 spent on PE equipment prowded by R Noble Sciences

'
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Three Counties Academy Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT .

Financial review

Financial position

~ The majority of the Academy's mcome is obtained from the DfE in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is
restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the period ended 31 August 2022 and the
assoc1ated expend:ture are shown as restncted funds in the statement of financial activities. ‘

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE in accordance with the Charities Statement of
-‘Recommended Practice, 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities' (SORP 2019), such grants are shown in the Statement
of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balarice is reduced
by annual depreciation charges over. the useful life of the assets concerned as defmed in the Academy's accountmg
pohcres - ~

During the year ended 31 August 2022, total expendrture of £1 915, 515 (2021 £1, 698 ,478) was covered by recurrent
grant funding from the DfES. The net income before transfers and revaluatwns for the year was £40 327 (2021:
£113 744 net mcome)

At 31 August 2022, the net book value of fixed assets was £3,001, 713 (2021: £3, 066 587) and movements in tangtble
fixed assets are shown in the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the
- ‘associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.,

“Investment policy . ‘
The academy retains any lnterest earned on mvestments and bears any charges made by the bank Investment of
temporary cash surpluses is made directly in current or deposit accounts of -the nominated bank. The Executive
~Headteacher and Ch1ef Fmance ‘Officer monitor.cash balances to determine the most appropnate mterest beanng :
gaccount ; : ‘

l.oans are never made to any orgamsatron or mdmdual from academy funds The academy does not offer any secunty
to the bank. A

Any re- profllmg of income flow must be agreed by the Executwe Headteacher and Chlef Finance Officer. The academy
has not made arrangements for overdrafts, loans or any other forms of credlt or deferred purchases.

Reserves policy - ~
The governors review the reserve levels of the Academy annually. Thts review encompasses the nature of income : and
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. The Academy's
current level of unrestricted reserves (total funds less the .amount held in fixed assets .and restricted funds) is -
£218,522 (2021: 190,644), all of which is free reserves. The level of general restncted reserves excludlng fixed assets
and pension fund is £17, 912 surplus (2021: £118,894 deficit). : ,

The Trust operates a Reserves Policy which sets the level of reserves deemed prudent to hold at a mrmmum level
(subject to available funds) of £100,000 or approximately 5% of GAG with a maximum holding in reserves of  £200,000
~or approximately 10% of GAG. The Trust aims to have at any one tlme the equivalent of 1 month of our average salary
commitments on hand as reserves in the form of cash. These reserves will ensure the ability of the Trust to meet its
obhgatlons to stakeholders without placmg additional stram and burden on day-to day finances.

Reserves held in excess of the set l\mlts will be used to ennch the educatlonal offer of the Trust in the manner best
surted to doing so. ) :

The Trust will adjust the minimum and maximum holdings authonsed within the reserves Policy at any such time that
new entrants to the Trust are accepted wrth the general pnncnple of a 5% to 10% GAG floor and cellmg bemg apphed

Page 5




Three Counties Academy Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial review

Going concern

After making appropnate enquiries, the Trust Board has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it contmues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basxs can be found in the Statement of Accountmg
Pol1c1es . ,

We do not envisage major cost ;mphcatrons for the Trust over the coming 12 months as a result of Covid 19, .other
than supply costs for ongoing staff absence due to infection. Though there are additional costs involved with cleaning
and safety measures to ensure the safe operation of the school, these. are not seen to be to such an extent as to cause
financial hardshrp on the Trust in and of themselves. : : :

“The financial impact of Cov1d 19

' The reportmg penod covered saw monies received by the Trust in relatlon to Covrd 19 tutonng catch -up from central
govemment whxch was spent as mtended on tutonng services. :

Principal risks and uncertainties
~'Currently, the Governors consrder that the cntlcal risks and uncertamtles facmg the Academy are:.

A '*Vanatlon of pupil lntake numbers. Numbers on role are strong and increasing. The threat of an adverse effect

‘ on overall numbers and finance has been mitigated by 2 strong years of above PAN intake and a further -
opportumty to increase numbers exists when current Year 11, numbering only 53 pupils replaced by a
minimum 68 pupils in the Year 7 intake, It remains the case that the Trust will best beneflt from consistent
high numbers .

- < A lack of material mvestment in ‘the school for ba51c hygiene and safety measures through the CF

: allocations. Although the trust has received prior allocations, remedial works are further requ1red with no
prospect of completion outside a successful CIF bid ,

. ‘Continued upward cost pressures continue to significantly 1mpact the academy w1th rising staff costs and
-assoc1ated costs bringing the biggest pressure to bear from unfunded pay settlements, most notably the
mcreased pressure on our SEND provision with insufficient funding allocated to allow an appropnate staffing

- response other than impacting main school budgets = -

- A continued lack of suitable candidates prepared to travel to rural locatlons, especaally newly quahfled

i teaching staff, the school remains fully staffed at this time

- Potential future cost increases from salaries at the next Pay Review 1f not fully funded through central

: government and increasing National insurance contributions
- Further restructuring of leadership as required to move the trust forward as a MAT
- Inflationary pressures on goods and services including fuel and power
X lncreased staffmg costs as NoR increases and the discussion around mcreasmg PAN
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Three Counties Academy Trust

Report of the Trustees :
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

STRATEGIC REPDRT

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

‘The academy has adopted a protocol based on that of its insurer, Zurich Municipal for vehicle insurance only with all
other insurance products procured through the RPA scheme: .

Stage 1: Risk ldentlﬁcatron / Complllng the Risk Register :

The Risk Register is reviewed proactively on an ongoing basis e.g., at regular management/trustee meetings and,
“reactively when key staff leave, when control systems change or when new evidence about risk exposure ‘emerges, -
e.g.,'if a loss were incurred, errors made, or an accident suffered. It is, therefore, a key tool for senior leadership and
trustees to use continuously to check that the academy's level of risk exposure is acceptable. :

Stage 2. Pnontlsatlon Assessing the Probablhty and the |mpact of Each Rnsk :

The Risk Register uses a matrix offering a straightforward means of plottlng the probabrhty of the risk occurring and
its likely impact. This shows in quite stark terms those risks that should cause most concern - high chance of
‘occurrence and high impact. It is.now relatrvely easy for staff and trustees to complete as it is based on the
knowledge of several people without the need for detailed analysis. Now that all risks are plotted on the matrix,
those that fall in the Red or Amber squares are being looked at and will usually require some degree of ‘management
action.

Stage 3: Control Deﬁmtlon and Controls Assessment

The first step is to consider the existing controls. Examples of controls used to date include: project plans, effective

. resource management, verification processes, management information and actions, physical safeguards, supervision,
~monitoring. This has helped in_the assessment of the real“ risks by briefly considering and evaluating the level of
xrstmg controls in place ~ : ‘

Stage 4: Pnonty/'l'lmescales/Review Date
" Description of further action required is entered into the nsk register and reviewed periodically, The priority of “the
risk determines the time frame and review date as follows: Low Long-Term Date - 12 months from now; Medium . Term
Date - 6 months from now; High Short Term Date -3 months from now. A nsk owner is identified who can be
accountable for taklng the actlon , : S

Future plans

The academy has adopted MAT articles and formed a MAT {Three Countnes Academy Trust) wrth 2 of our partner
primary schools, designed to ensure continued strong provision across the phases in the locality. The trust will then
seek to grow at a manageable pace locally to continue to promote its vision and ethos. -

New entrants to the MAT over the next accountmg period will see the transfer of reserves to the trust to be reflected
in the next accounting penod and reports.

“The Trust intends to continue the growth of pupll numbers in llne with prevrous projections so that the provision
currently in place can be maintained financially through mcreased revenue. This growth has been better than
projected and indications for September 2023 reflect a position where global PAN will be achieved with 400 pupils on
roll against a budgeted number of 402. Over the penod of 8 years, the school will have moved from 302 NoR to 400
NoR and achleve PAN : ;

The academy has continued to develop an already robust curriculum designed in the best interests of pupils and fitting
the vision for such currently being explored by Ofsted. Our Vocational Centre is seen as an extremely positive step for
current pupils and for the potential to increase pupil numbers further as such a provision is seen as desirable by .the
local and wider community where no such provision currently exists, There is clear and consistent evidence -from
\\'parental visits that aspects of vocational provision are a major determining factor in seeking a school place with the
'school and have almost certainly been responsible in part for the significant upturn in global NoR. This provision will
be further strengthened with links-now being drscussed between the Trust and the new educatronal provnsron at Bristol.
.Aerospace . -

The Trust has bid again into the next round of CIF b]ds followmg an unsuccessful bid last year for asbestos removal |

- and associated works.

The Trust will complete further ongoing estate upgrade work to comphment the addition of new tmlet facilities to _one
teachmg block through exxstmg funds and reserves as need anses :
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Three Counties Academy Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution -

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt chanty The Charitable - Company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Charitable Company was lncorporated on the 9th of November 2011 and converted from a Local Authority School
to an Academy Trust on the 15t of December 2011.

The Trust adopted MAT articles dunng the accountmg period and rebranded to the Three Counties Academy Trust

following approval from the RSC and Adwsory Board Queen Elizabeth High School was given Sponsor School status

" The governors act as the trustees for the charitable activities of QEHC Academy Trust/Three Counties Academy Trust

and are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law. The Chantable Company is

now known as Three Countles Academy Trust.

k ,Detalls of the governors who served throughout the accountmg year except as noted are mcluded in the Reference

and Admlmstratwe Details on pages 1.

Members' hablhty ‘
Each member of the academy trust undertakes to contnbute to the assets of the company in the event of it being

wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be -
rrequired not exceeding”£10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member. .

il \Trustees lndemnitres

H \Governors beneflt from indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy Trust's expense to cover the hablhty of the

~ governors which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or i

breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust, provided that any such
insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the governors knew to-be a breach .of
trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the governors in reckless disregard to whether it was a breach of .

- trust or breach of duty or not and provided also that any such insurance shall not extend to the costs of -any

unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the governors .in thelr capacrty as directors of ~the

Academy Trust.

The habwhty insurance is prowded by the RPA and provides unhmlted cover (2021 £1 000 ,000) on any one claim.

k Prmcnpal actwmes ‘
. This is defined in the Articles of Assocxatlon which were updated dunng thIS accountlng penod to the latest model
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Three Counties Academy Trust

k Report of the Trustees
- for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

- STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Governors
The Trust has recently updated the Articles and Memorandum of Association to. the latest model versions which have
been sealed and lodged with Compames House

The Members have agreed not to have Staff Trustees except the Executwe Headteacher (ex- offrcro) A serving Staff
Trustee has resrgned the position as Trustee but will take up the posmon of Staff Local Governor.

- The Parent Trustees are elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy A Parent Trustee must be a parent of
a pupil at the Academy at the time when they are elected. The Trust Board makes all necessary arrangements for,
and determines all other matters relating to, an election of Parent Trustees, including any question of whether -a
person is a parent of a registered pupil at the Academy. Any election of Parent Trustees which is contested shall be
held by secret ballot. The arrangements. made for the election of a Parent Trustee provide for every person who is
entitled to vote in the election to have an opportumty to do so by post or, if they prefer, by havmg their ballot paper
returned to the Academy Trust by a registered pupll at the Academy : :

Where a vacancy for-a Parent. Trustee is requlred to be filled by electron, the Trust Board takes such steps as are
~reasonably practical to secure that every person who is known to them to be a parent of a registered pupil at the -
Academy is informed of the vacancy and that it is required to be filled by election, informed that they are entitled to
stand as a candrdate, and vote at the election, and given an opportunity to do s0. The number of Parent Trustees
required is made up by Parent Trustees appointed by the Trust Board if the number of parents standing for election is
less than the number of vacancies. in appointing a Parent Trustee, the Trust Board appoints a person who is the
\parent of a reglstered pupil at the Academy; or where it is not reasonably practical to do so, a person who is the
parent of a chlld of. compulsory school age The Executwe Headteacher is treated for all purposes as being an ex
ofﬁcro trustee : : .

Local Governing Bodies will have separate arrangements for the recruitment and deployment of governors in lme w1th ]
therr Terms of Reference. : '

Orgamsatlonal structure :

The Academy has a leadership structure. whrch consrsts of trustees and Senior Leadershrp The aim of the leadership
structure is to devolve responsibility and encourage mvolvement m decision making at all levels. The Executive
Headteacher is the accounting officer. During the new accountmg period, the Board will seek to form a new
committee to act as a Local Govermng Body for Queen Ehzabeth ngh School currently that role is undertaken by the
Board,. :

The trustees are responsible for setting ge‘neral policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, approving the statutory
~“accounts, monitoring the Academies by the use of budgets and other data, and making major decisions about the
direction of the Academres, capital expendlture and staff appomtments

‘ 'The Senior Leadership Team for the accountmg period are the Executwe Headteacher, Head of School and 1 Assistant
Headteacher, and an Academy Business Manager, additionally there were 2 secondments to the SLT as the Trust
moved to a position of growth and to allow the capacity for this growth. The leaders direct the Academy at an
executive level implementing the policies laid down by the trustees and reporting back to them. The Senior. Leaders
are. responsible for the .authorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff, though
appointment panels for posts in the Senior Leadership Team and for many other roles always contain a trustee. Some
spending control is devolved to members of the Senior Leadershlp Team, with limits above which the Chair of Finance
or Chair of the Trust Board must agree

; Subject leaders are responsrble for the day-to-day operation of curriculum subject areas and accordlngly orgamse
their staff, caprtatron resources and pupils. ‘

: : : Page 9




. Three Counties Academy Trust

. Report of the Trustees ;
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Governors

The Trust Board believes that in order to fulfil its responsibilities effectively, it is essential that each member is
commltted to a shared vision for the Trust and that the trustees are worklng well asa team to achleve this.

“To help new trustees feel able to take an active part w1th1n the board and be valued as an equal member of the team,
the Trust recognises the need for new trustees to have an induction - a penod of planned support to introduce them
to thelr new role The aims of the induction are to: ~

- welcome new trustees to the team
- help them to get to know the academy
~ - assist them to understand their role and responsibilities
- enable them to contribute fully to the work of the Trust Board

In order to achleve its alms, the Trust Board ensures that the followmg steps are taken

- The Chair of the Trust Board sends a letter welcoming the new trustee to the team and offenng them the

' opportunity to meet before the first formal Trust Board meeting

- The Executive Headteacher invites the new trustee to visit the academy - ‘

- When a new trustee attends his/her first meeting, the Chair of the Trust Board welcomes and introduces them
to .the.: other trustees. Trustees ~are: asked to introduce themselves and describe  any pamcular
interests/ expenence they : have, and the new trustee Jjs .given the opportunity to. say somethmg about

\ themselves,

"= The new trustee is invited to join a relevant committee or.committees. They can also be given the opportumty

to attend and observe committee meetings before deciding about which committees they might like to join

- A trustee is appomted to take responsibility for inducting every new trustee. This will be an expenenced

. trustee who acts as.a mentor

- All trustees are encouraged to attend any relevant LA, regxonal or national training events that become

; available along with in-house training sessions and access to the NGA Learning Link platform

- New trustees are shown how to access policy documents and other relevant lnformatlon for trustees
They will be mformed who to contact for adwce and support. S

'Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
Senior Leaders at the academy are placed within an appropriate range on the national Leadership spine payment
range relative the size of the school in terms of pupil numbers at their time of appointment. The starting salary within
" that range is determined in conjunction with trustees and the Executive Headteacher -for all roles except -the
Executive Headteacher, and in the case of the Executive Headteacher is set by trustees. The decrs:on will assess prior
leadershlp expenence, prevrous pay awards and responsrbllmes

The academy adopts a locally agreed Performance Related Pay Pohcy and appralsal procedures For all members of
senior leadership other than the Executive Headteacher, a recommendation is made by the Executive Headteacher as
o whether pay progression should be awarded based on successful completlon of annual targets. -

Trustees will be presented with. ewdence to support such decrsrons and ratify those decrsrons or seek further
clarification as required. For the Executive Headteacher, this decision is taken by trustees working in conjunction with
an independent adviser. Agam, such.a .decision to enable pay progression for the Executive Headteacher will be
dependent upon their performance against agreed targets. No member of senior leadersh1p can progress beyond the
highest point of the range on which they are appointed. , :

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

- Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees, being drawn from local public
and private sector orgamsatxons, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an
interest. :

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.
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“Three Counties Academy Trust

: \Report of the Trustees : ‘
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

\STRUCTURE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Risk management

- The governors have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to teaching,
the provision of facilities and other operational issues, and its finances. The governors have implemented a number of
systems to assess risks that the school faces, especially in the operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health
and safety, bullying, and school trips) and in relation to the control of finance. They have introduced systems,
including operational procedures and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk. Where significant financial
risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The Risk Register is maintained by the
Academy leadership team (with reference to the Academy‘s Committees where appropriate), reported to the
- governors for approval and supported by training from an external risk management specialist where appropnate

STATEMENT ASTO DlSCLOSURE OF lNFORMATION T0 AUDITORS :

So far as the trustees are aware, there is no relevant information (as defined by Sectlon 418 of the Companies Act

2006) of which the academy trust's auditors are unaware, and each trustee ‘has taken all the steps that they ought to

~ have taken as a trustee in order to make them aware of any audlt anformatlon and to establish that the academy
trust s audltors are aware of that mformatlon : : : : :

{AUDITORS - o
The auditors, Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd, w1ll be proposed for re- appomtment at the forthcommg Annual
General Meeting. : , i

“Trustees' ‘report, “incorporating :a strateglc report, “was approved by order of the board of trustees o'n
‘H—( ’2.('2.'&., vrereesnnsesessss and signed on its behalf by: :

---------------------------------

M Henderson - Trust:
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Three Counties Academy Trust

Governance Statement

\ or the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Scope of Respon51bility

‘As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that QEHC Academy Trust/Three . Counties

Academy Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business obJectwes and can provide only

. reasonable and not absolute assurance against material mlsstatement or loss

The Trust Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Execunve Headteacher as accountmg officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and _in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between QEHC
Academy Trust/Three Counties Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for
reporting to the Trust Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in mternal control.

The trustees' consider. that the Trust Board and its Committees combmed meet adequately and regularly over the
course of the year in order to discharge thelr responsrblhtles and have robust and effective ~management

: arrangements
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Three Counties Academy Trust

" Governance Statement -
\ for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Report of the Trustees and in the
Statement of Trustees Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 5 times dunng the year Attendance
during the year at meetmgs of the board of trustees was as follows: . f

Trustee A ' e  Meetings Outofa

‘ N ' Attended possible
M J Farmer ‘ -8 5
D Racic (Resigned 31.08.22) 2 5
M Henderson ~. {Chair) : 4 5
N D Ferguson - . ={Vice Chair) 3. 5
S L Reeves-Walters 3 5
T Dugmore i {Resigned 28.01.22) Q.- 3
D Berry {(Mr) : : 1 - 5
‘M Franklin RIS L : 4 - 5
A Taylor : {Resigned 05.10.22) (Vice Chair) 4 5
D.Berry (Mrs) . : s 2 5
K Ewing : . {Appointed 01.10.21) 4 5
M Stubbs (Appointed 29.04.22) 2 2

The Fmance and Audrt Commrttee is.a sub commlttee of the main Trust Board Its purpose is to set a strategrc 5
3 drrectron for the academy flnances and to monitor their use. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows

,Trustee R ; : « Meetings : Out of a
P S Attended possible
"“MJFarmer 5 : 5.
M Henderson S 5 3. 5
M Franklin (Vice Chair) 4 5
N D Ferguson ’ . SR 3 5
D Berry (Mrs) .-~ {Chair) 4. 5

Governance Review ’ :
~The Trust Board audit the skrlls held by Trustees annually and use the NGA Skrlls Audlt tool m dorng 50. Any gaps m
expemse are then used m formulatmg recrurtment plans to the Board. -

The Trust Board will commission a Governance Revrew asa condmon of its MAT approval Wthh will report on the work
of the Board and opportumtres to improve upon that work. This will affirm work of the Trust Board itself over the
course -of .the year ‘in assessing internally its own effectweness and provrde the Board mth priorities for future
development through the TIP. : : ~

Y The Board has worked extenswely w1th the offices of the Regronal Schools Commrssroner, now the Regions Group West
Midlands over the prevrous reporting period to analyse and strengthen governance from the Board and continues to do
50 further R ; e

Conflicts of lnterest : :

The board has in place a current Conflicts of Interest Pohcy to which it adheres ngrdly Declarations at all levels of
governance are recorded via a central platform and maintained by the Governance Professwnal w1th checks on .
: : val]drty at every meetmg of the board copies of which are published on the Trust website.
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‘Three Counties Academy Trust

Governance Statement :
for the ‘Year Ended 31 August 2022

‘Review of Value for Money ‘

As accounting officer, the Executive Headteacher has respons1b|hty for ensuring the academy trust delivers good value
in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting ofﬁcer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has prowded good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the Trust Board where value for money can be improved, including the use of
‘benchmarking data where available. The accountmg ofﬁcer for the academy trust has delivered lmproved value for
money dunng the year by: .

Over the last financial -period, QEHC Academy Trust/Three Countles Academy Trust has further slgmflcantly
strengthened their financial position and moved from a position of cumulative deficit in 2020-2021 in the previous -
"accounting period and further improved during this accounting penod to one of cumulative surplus. This has been
ach1eved in part by adhenng to the requrrement to ensure value for money in procurement

Some of the ways we have used our resources this year to ensure good value are:

-.. - Strengthening further the leadershlp capacity within the academy by appomtlng Mlddle Leaders to the Senior
" Leadership Team to allow the Executive Headteacher strategic development time in the growth of the Trust
- Continuing to engage with the local partners to place the academy at the heart of the commumty, mcludmg
the potential joining of the MAT and the actual joining of the MAT by 2 partner schools :
e lncreasmg 51gmf1cantly the professional development of teachers so that the quality- of lessons taught at the
; academy continues to improve

- Expanded |nd1v1dual support and intervention so that puplls have targeted interventions leadmg to 1mproved R

SINIE outcomes and usmg PP funds to impact outcomes for those pupils by ring-fencing this funding : ,

ite lncreasmg pup1l numbers on roll in the face of adverse conditions through a pro-active marketing strategy, O
with strategy focussed on exceeding global PAN in subsequent admission windows

- Further investment in our middle leadership structure to develop capacrty throughout the Trust

- . Zero.annual spend on inappropriate alternative provision for pupils and on unnecessary examination fees

- Continued development of the curriculum so that is broad and gives pupils access to a wide range of choice,

" meeting the new Ofsted framework and seen as a model of good practtce locally, with an emphasrs on

vocattonal skills-based education

- Significant ongoing review of all SLA spend with renegotiation of contracts reflectmg extenswe savmg

- Improving Trust estate where required for example toilet. renovations

~ - Supporting colleagues to access appropriate NPQ's by provndmg time to do so -

i Staffmg costs have reduced from 81/ 7% of total expendxture to 75/0% :

--Key performance informatlo‘n (unvahdated)that supports our appropnate use of ,resources includes:

- Attainment 8 37.9%
- 5-9 in English and mathematics 24.00% .
- Students entering EBacc 32.00% :
- Students achieving EBacc 9. 52%

- EBacc APS 3.24

The trust continues to review spending, especially on support services and SLA's, owever 1ncreasmg budget pressures,
driven by inflationary pressures and fuel/power costs allied to unfunded pay settlements continue to hit extremely
hard and we continue to work with the ESFA to ensure we minimise the impact of the challenge.s we are currently
: facing. The Trust is looking forward to a strong period of financial stability following srgmflcant upturns in . GAG
- +funding and global pupil numbers allred with cost cutting measures undertaken over previous years. which have seen
the Trust return to a position of- cumulatwe surplus. : : '

Further value for money will be achleved in actlomng, where prudent, the recommendatlons of our most recent SRMA g
report. :
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Three Counties Academy Trust

 Governance Statement
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

‘The Purpose of the System of Internal Control :

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute -assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise. the
risks to the achievement of charitable company policies, aims and objectives, to evatuate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively, and economically.
The system of internal control has been in place in QEHC Academy Trust/Three Counties Academy Trust for the . period
"1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk e V . : : ‘

The Trust Board has reviewed the key risks to which the charitable company is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Trust Board is of the view
that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the charitable company's significant
risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the

aknnual report and financial statements. This process is regularly revi,ewed by the Trust Board.

The Risk and Control Framework = w5 : : S
- The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In

particular, it includes:

- comprehevnsive budgeting and monitoring Systerns with an annual budget and perio,di,c: financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Trust Board- ; ’

g y { R

- regular reviews by the Finance and Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against
- the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes .

- setting targets to measure financial and other performance

- .clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

- . identification and management of risks. '
The Trust Board continues to employ School Business Leadership SerVices as internal auditor. ‘

‘The internal auditor's role includes giving ad\'(icye on ﬁnantial matteré and performing a range of checks on the
. -academy trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

- testing of payroll systems

- testing of purchase systems .

- - testing of control account/ bank reconciliations
- personnel checks. '

On a termly basis, the reviewer reports to the Trust Board, through the Finance and Audit Committee on the

- operation of the systems of control and on the operation of the systgms of control and on the discharge of the Trust
~ Boards financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year .on
year progress, ' : ' :
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‘Three Counties Academy Trust

~ Governance Statement
 for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

Review of Effectiveness : i - .
As Acc0untmg Officer, the Executwe Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectweness of the system of
‘internal control Dunng the year in question the review has been informed by: ‘

- ... the work of the extemally appointed internal auditor;

- - the work of the external auditor;

- .~ the financial management and governance self—assessment process;

- the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have respon51b1hty for the development
and maintenance of the internal controt framework.

The accountmg officer has been adwsed of the 1mphcat10ns of the result of their rewew of the systems of internal
~-control by the finance committee and a plan to address weakness and ensure contmuous 1mprovements of the system
is in place. ‘

Approved by order of the members of the board of govemors on... uH‘ZlQ'L ........ and signed on
its behalf by ; : _ ‘ . :
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Three Counties Academy Trust

 Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance
\ for the Year Ended 31 Aug_§t 2022

o As accountrng officer of Three Countres Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust

board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding agreement
in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consrderatron | have had
due regard to the requrrements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021 :

I confirm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to rdentrfy any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and condmons of fundmg ungder the -academy
trust s fundlng agreement and the Academy Trust -Handbook 2021 . ;

1 confirm that no instances of material rrregulanty, rmpropnety or fundmg non-comphance have been discovered to
- date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these wrll be notified to the board of trustees
and ESFA. ,
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Three Counties Academy Trust

Statement of Trustees' Resgonsibih’ties
for the Year Ended 31 August 202

The trustees (who act as governors of Three Counties Academy Trust and are also the drrectors of the chantable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial
statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg Practice) and applicable law
and regulatlons ,

Company law requtres the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
‘state of affairs of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the
income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that penod in prepanng those financial statements, the
trustees are required to : o

~

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them con51stently, :

- observe the methads and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academ1es Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022

- ‘make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

- . prepare. the -financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the
chantable company will continue in busmess .

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accountmg records that are suffucrent to show and explam the -
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time. the financial position of - the
charitable company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for takmg reasonable steps
for the preventron and detectron of fraud and other irregularities. : : '

The trustees are responsuble for ensunng that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies fmanc1al .
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They \
~are also responsible for ensunng grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes mtended

In -preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to state whether apphcable UK . ‘Accounting

- Standards have been followed, subJect to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on ....... {1{:&12\'?»2/ ......... .and signed on its
~ behalf by:. TEIEN : : ‘
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Report of the: lndegendent Auditors to the Members of
Three Counties Academy Trust :

Opinion . : :

“We have audited the ﬁnanc1al statements of Three Counties Academy Trust (the ‘academy trust’) for the year ended

31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement .and
“notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting

framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
* Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 lssued by the Education

and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). e

ln our opinion the fmanc1al statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its _incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- ~have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generauy Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- .-have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academles Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022.

Basxs for opinion -

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audrtmg (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further- described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report We are independent of the academy trust in accordarice with the ethical
- requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's ‘ Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requnrements We believe
that the audit eyidence we have obtamed is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusmns relatmg to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern ba51$ of accountmg
in the preparatlon of the financial statements is appropnate

Based on the work we have performed, we have not 1dent1f1ed any material uncertainties relating to. events or
‘conditions that, mdrvxdually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a
gomg concern fora penod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authonsed for issue.

Our respon51b1ht1es and the responsibilities of the trustees wzth respect to gomg concern are descnbed in the relevant
sectlons of this report. » :

Other information ‘ » :
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other mformatron comprises the information mcluded in
the Annual Report, other than the f1nanc1al statements and our Report of the tndependent Auditors thereon.

“Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and except to the extent other\mse
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conctusron thereon

in connectron w1th our audit of -the financial statements, our responsrblllty is to read the other mformanon and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or. our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated. If we identify such -material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of thrs other information, we are required to report. that fact. We have nothmg
to report in thrs regard. ,
€l . - 3
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 i
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
- the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and '

v

- - the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
Three Counties Academy Trust

Matters on thCh we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report tp

you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audlt have not been recewed from
branches not visited by us; or :

" - the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountmg records and retums, or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- _the trustees were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemptlon from the requrrement to -
prepare a Strategic Report or in prepanng the Report of the Trustees :

- Responsibifities of trustees
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsnbrhtues, the trustees (who are also the directors of the
charitable company for.the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine .is
necessary to enable the preparatlon of f1nanc1al statements that are free from material mlsstatement whether due to
: fraud or error. : ~ i

In preparing the fmancval statements, the trustees are responsnble for assessing the academy trust’s ability to continue.
as a going concern, ‘disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis - of
“accounting unless the trustees elther mtend to llqmdate the academy trust or to cease operatlons, or have no :realistic
alternatwe but to do s0.
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Report of the Independent Audltors to the Members of
Three Counties Academy Trust

Our responsibihtles for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise . from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

‘ The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, inctuding fraud is detaited below:

We obtained an understanding of the legat and regulatory framework apphcable to both the Academy itself and the
-sector in which it operates. We identified areas of laws and regulatrons that could reasonably be expected to have a

material effect on the financial statements from our sector experience and through discussion with the trustees and
other management, The most. srgmﬁcant were identified as the Department for Education, the Education and ‘Schools -

Funding Agency, the Academles Trust Handbook 2021, the Academles Accounts Direction 2021to 2022, Compames Act
legislation and Charities Act and FR$102 SORP leg1slat1on : ~ ;

We considered the extent of comphance with those laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
- financial statements. Our audit procedures included:

s = Making enquiries of management as to where they consider there tobea susceptlblhty to fraud and whether

they have any knowledge or suspicion of fraud;

- Obtaining an understanding of the internal controls establlshed to ‘mitigate risks related to fraud or
non-compliance with laws and regulations;

- Assessing the design effectiveness of the controls in place to prevent and detect fraud

' - Assessing the risk of management override including identifying and testing journal entnes,

% \Challengmg the assumptlons and judgements made by management in its sxgmfrcant accountlng estfmates ,

'\\Whllst our audit dld not 1dent1fy any significant matters relating to the detection of irregularities including fraud and :

despite the audit being planned and conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK), there remains an unavoidable risk that

material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected owing to inherent limitations of the audit,
and that by their very nature, any such instances of fraud or irregularity would likely involve collusron, forgery,
mtentxonal m1srepresentatlons, or the override of mternal controls

A further description of our responSIbrhtles for the audlt of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Repomng Council's website at www.frc.org. uk/audltorsresponsrbmtles ThlS descnptfon forms part of our Report of
“the Independent Audxtors , :

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, asa body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of . the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no_other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsrblllty to anyone other than the academy trust and the academy
trust’s members asa body, for our audit work, for thlS report or for the opumons we have formed.

- 'Mrs Lisa Weaver FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)' i : : .
_for and on behalf of Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd ’ : . .
Chartered Accountants

_Statutory Auditors
2 Wyevale Business Park
Kings Acre
Hereford
Herefordshire
HR4 78BS
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independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to
v Three Counties Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance w1th the terms of our engagement and further to the requnrements of the Educatlon and Sk\lls Funding
Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have carried out an engagement .to
~ obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Three Counties Academy
Trust during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes identified by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Three Countles Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Three Counties Academy Trust and the
'ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Three Counttes Academy Trust and the ESFA for
our work, for this report or for the conclusion we have formed ) :

Respectwe responsibihties of T hree Counties Academy Trust's accountmg officer and the reporting accountant
The .accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Three Counties Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, - for
ensuring that expendxture disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authontles which govern them :

Our responsxbllmes for this engagement are estabhshed in the Umted Kingdom by our profession’s ethical gmdance and
~are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of -the
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the
- period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes 1ntended by Parllament or that the

f1nanc1al transactlons do not conform to the authontles which govern them.

\Approach : : :
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 1ssued by the ESFA i
\We performed a lm‘nted assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. :

The objectlve of a hm1ted assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain mformatlon ‘and
.explanations .in order. to prov1de us w1th sufficient ~appropriate ewdence to express a negative conclusion on
regulanty

A llmlted assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does.not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that mlght be 1dent1f1ed
ina reasonable assurance engagement Accordingly, we do not express F posmve oplmon

Qur engagement mcludes examlnatlon, on a test basis, of evtdence relevant to the regulanty and propnety of the
academy trust's mcome and expend1ture : -

The work undertaken to draw our conclusions includes:

- detailed testing of a sample of items of income and expendnture to ensure appropnately applied for the
' purpose intended
- specific testing, on a sample basrs, of system. controls relevant to the above
= . a general review of correspondence wrth the appropriate authontnes regardmg Academy governance matters
during the year ‘
- a general review and discussion of the Academy’s mtemal control procedures for establishing and mamtammg
systems of control and documentation regarding these matters

The work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements to the extent evidence from the conduct of that
audit supports the regularity conclusion. : '
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lndeipendent Reporting Accountaht‘s Assruranvce Report on Regularity to
- Three Counties Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

Conclusion ' \

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attentlon which suggests that in all material respects the
-expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parhament and the finanaal transactxons do not conform to the authonties which
- govern them, .

e N
Thorne Widgery Accountancy Ltd
Chartered Accountants
Reporting Accountant
2 Wyevale Business Park
Kings Acre
Hereford ,
Herefordshire
HR4.7BS

Daté: 2-\\12.\2,%/ ..... i
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Three Counties Academy Trust

: §_t_§_\tebjent of Fingncial Activities : '
(Incorporating an Income and Expenditure Account)
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

: 31.8.22  31.8.21
Restricted »
Unrestricted Fixed Restricted
-~ General Asset General - - - Total . Total
-~ fund - Fund - Fund - funds funds
: Notes = £ £ - £ £ £
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS : : !
FROM o » S ; T
Donations and capital grants ..~ -2 - 9,745 236,184 245,929 117,977
Charitable activities ‘
Funding for the academy's . S ,
educational operations 3 - - 2,403,360 : 2,403,360 2,165,166
Other trading activities 4 - 10,370 - 623 10,993 25,125
Investment income - 5 52 R e : 52 - : 18
Total o 10422 9,745 2,640,167 2,660,334 2,308,286
~ EXPENDITURE ON
- Charitable activities
~ Academy's educationa AT ‘ : : :
~ operations . 7 27 74,619 2,545,361 2,620,007 2,194,542
. Total Al : : eihinag 74,619 2,545,361 2,620,007 2,194,542
N ~ NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) 10,395 (64,874) 94,806 A40,32'7 113,744
\ ‘Other recognised gains/(losses) ; ‘ LT s G i
~ Actuarial gains on defined ' S S ‘ S : i
benefit schemes : - : - 587,000 587,000 49,000
Net movement in funds 10,395  (64,874) 681,806 627,327 162,744
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS ; Senmilaa -
Total funds brought forward 190,645 3,066,587 , (765,894) ,2,491’,33& 2,328,594
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED | S L o
’ FORWARD : 201,040 3,001,713 © . (84,088) 3,118,665 2,491,338

The notes form part of these financial statements




~ M Henderso,

Three Counties Academy Trust (Régisteréd number: 07840838)

\Baiance Sheet
31 Augu's; 2022

31.8.22 31.8.21

S : Notes : of £
. FIXED ASSETS = o :
Tangible assets | S » | 3,001,713 3,066,587
CURRENT ASSETS o | |
Debtors B © 13 : . 70,750 60,573
: Cash at bank and ln hand - - : & e Lo 419,227 166,968
489,977 227,541
CREDITORS f Ty : : R EERe I S & :
- Amounts falling due within one year ‘ 14 o : {271,025) - (155,790)
NET CURRENT ASSETS S : ' . 218,952 71,751
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,220,665 3,138,338
PENSION LIABILITY ~ T S (102,000 (647,000)
NET ASSETS . o , 3,118,665 2,491,338
RS gy
_ Restricted funds: ; : ' I R i
Restricted General Fund ' s (3,591). (151,026) = -
Other DfE/ESFA grants N : O i 11,703 Gty LR
. Restricted Pension Fund - hL 2 YOI + (102,000) (647,000)
~ DfE/YPLA Capital Grants f S S 488,382 500,355
Conversion and depreciation i . ; } : 2,302,540 2,350,725
Capital expenditure from GAG ' : S 70,452 72,182
Capital expenditure from other donations ; ST , 140,339, 143,325 .
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Pupil premium =~ B L 29,800 : 20,621
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Catch-up premium S P E SRR SN - 3,311

‘Other COVID-19 funding - L SETaiith Rirpa . 8,200

2,917,625 2,300,693

Unfeétricted funds: . i SRR : S ik , :
Unrestricted General fund ; : I SR 201,040 190,645 -

TOTALFUNDS -~ 311Be65 2,491,338

The fmancral statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board of Trustees and authonsed for issue -on
ceeresans { \.fr( 11{22, .................... and were signed on its behalf by:

G eeresene i rTesesess0ss s amerT o 0000000

The notes form part.of these financial statements -




Three Counties Academv Trust

" ‘Cash Flow Statement \
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022
Notes

Cash flows from operating activities: .
Cash generated from operations 1

Net cash provided by operating activities
 Cash flows from investing activities
-~ Capital grants from DfE/EFA
~ Interest received ‘

Net cash provided by investing activities
‘Cash flows from financing activities
- Loan repayments in year

Net cash. provided by/(used inj financing activitiés

: \Change in cash and cash equxvalents in the

o ;reportmg pehod s
~ Cash and cash equivalents at the \

beginmng of the repomng period

' Cash and cash equwalents at the end of
kthe reportmg penod

The notes form part of these financial statements
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242,462

242,462

9,745

52

9,797

252,259

166,968
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'31.8.21

168,623

168,623

9 619
18

9,637

(25,000

(25,000

" 153,260

13708

166,968




Three Counties A&ademy Trust

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

for the Year Ended 31 August 202
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

\‘1.~

Activities).
Adjustments for:
Depreciation charges

Interest received
Increase in debtors

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA

~Increase/ (decrease) in creditors
_ leference between pension charge and cash contnbutlons

Net cash prov:ded by operations

Net cash

\'lr'otval

- The notes form part of these financial statements.

- ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS

~Cash at bank and in hand

Page27

4,

1

Net income for the repomng period (as per the Statement of Financial

AL1.9.21

£

166,968

166,968

166,968

~Cash flow

31.8.22
£

40,327

64,873
(9,745)
- (52)

(10,177)

115,236
42,000

242,462

£

252,259

252,259

252,259

31.8.21

113,744

65,589
(9,619)
(18)
(3,055)
(21,018) |
23,000

168,623

At 31.8.22

£

419,227 .

419,227

419,227




Three Counties Academy ‘Trust

" Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 3'1 August 2022

1.

i ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the flnanc1al statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) "Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with -the . Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in .the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effectwe 1 .January 2019y,
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic - of
Ireland’, the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Compames Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventron

Three Countles Academy Trust meets the definition of a publlc beneflt entlty under FRS 102

~,Gomg concern : : : e ,
" The trustees assess whether the use of gomg concern is appropnate ie. whether there are -any matenal

uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on ‘the ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year. from
the date of approval of the financial statements statements and have concluded that the academy trust has

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no. material

uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the '
going concern basis of accountmg in prepanng the financial statements. : ‘

The academy has considered the effects of Covrd 19 and the current economic mflatronary pressures on thexr

i fmancral future and are confrdent there will be no significant effect on them continuing as a gomg concern.

lncome

~ Allincome is recogmsed in the Statement of Financial Activities once the academy trust has entltlement to the R
'funds, itis probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured rellably

Grants 3 :
Grants_are mcluded in the Statement of Financial Actmtles on .a receivable basrs The balance of mcome

‘received for specific purposes but not expended during the penod is_shown in the relevant funds on ‘the

balance sheet, Where income is received in advance of ‘meeting any performance related conditions there is
not_unconditional entrtlement 1o the income and its recogmtron is_deferred and included in creditors as -
deferred income until the performance- related conditions are met Where entltlement oceurs before income is
recerved the mcome is accrued :

General Annual Grant is recogmsed in full in the Statement of Financial ACthltleS in the year for which it is

~ recervable and any abatement in respect of the penod is deducted from mcome and recogmsed asa habmty

Capltal grants are recogmsed in full when there is an uncondltlonal entrtlement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in “the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entrtlement and are not deferred over the tife of the asset on which they are

expended

‘ Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provrded to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement _
of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured. rellably

Donations ~ ~ :
~ Donations are recogmsed on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions), where 1t ,

is probable that the income will be recelved and the amount can be measured reliably.

2

. Other income

Other income including the hire of facilities, is. recognised in the penod it is recelvable and to the extent the

‘ academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Page 28 ' , V Vcontinued...‘



Three Connties Academy 'frust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

\‘ 1'.’

Expenditure

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from
other trading activities. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities' and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'’. Where it is impractical to

_fair value the items-due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements

until they are sold This income is recogmsed within lncome from other trading activities'.

Expenditure is recogmsed once there is a legal or constructive obhgation to transfer economic beneﬁt to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the ‘amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are
made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each
activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which
contribute to_more than one actiwty and support costs which’ are not attributable to a single activity  are
apportioned between those actmties on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are
allocated on the basis of time spent and depreCIation charges allocated on the portion of the asset s use. :

Al resources expended are incluswe of irrecoverable VAT.

Chantable actmties :
Costs of charitable actmties are incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support

l.costs and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to chantable activities.

\ Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitahsed as tangible fixed assets and are carned at cost net of o
depreciation and any provrsxon for: |mpairment . : ‘

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Baldnce Sheet at cost and depreciated over their: expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use

“of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial

Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to

.the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have -been k

acquired with: unrestncted funds, deprecnation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund. .

Deprec1ation is provuded on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
.-the cost of each asset on a straight-line ba51s over ltS expected useful life, as follows ,

" Freehold land and buxldings : : i 2%
Freehold property improvements & i 2%
Furniture and fittings =~ T s o 15%
ICT equipment : » 33.3%
Plant and equipment o . 20%

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost DepreCIation of these assets is not charged until they i
are brought into use. , :

A review for impalrment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances 1ndicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets

" and their recoverable amounts are recogmsed as impairments. _Impairment losses are recognised in the
- ‘Statement of Fmancral ACthitleS ' :

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic fmancxal mstruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilmes of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows

Page 29 -~ - ' v k | continued...




‘Three Counties Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 ‘

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Fmancral lnstruments

“Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured

at amortised  cost as. detalled in the notes to the financial statements, Prepayments are not ﬁnancral
instruments. = .

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic ﬁnancial instrument' and is measured at face value.

‘ f ‘Financial I.IabllltlES trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are fmancral instruments, and are measured
“at amortised cost as detailed in the notes to the financial statements. Taxation and social security are not
- included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial

habrhty, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obhgatlon to dehver services rather

“than cash or another financial mstrument

. ‘Taxatlon ‘ s
“The Academy Trust is con51dered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1, Schedule 6 of the Finance Act. 2010
‘and therefore it meets the definition of a Charitable Company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly,

the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received  within
categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gams .act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are apphed excluswely to chantable

: purposes

vFund accountlng
,Unrestncted lntome funds represent those resources which may be used towards meetmg any of the chantable .
: obJects of the Academy Trust at the dlscretlon of the Governors : ;

Restncted fixed asset funds are resources. wh\ch are to be apphed to specific capltal purposes tmposed by the
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. . :

Restricted general funds comprise all-other, restncted funds received and include grants from the Education
fundlng Agency. :

Further explanation of the nature and purpose of each fund rs mcluded in the notes to the fmancral
statements. : :

7

Liabrhtres : :
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obhgatlon at the balance sheet date as aresultof a past event, it is

_probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement

can be estimated reliably, Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will

-:“pay to settle the debt or the amount 1t has recewed as advanced payments for the goods or services it must

prov1de

Provisions | : ‘ :

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obllgatron at the reportmg date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic beneﬂts and the obligation can be estlmated
rellably ‘ -

Provisions are measured at the best estrmate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the

~ effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is- based on the present value of those -amounts,

discounted’ at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwmdlng of ‘the

: d1scount is recogmsed within interest payable and similar charges.

,. \Leased Assets

Rentals under operattng leases are charged on straight line b351s over the lease term.
Pension costs and other post-retrrement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ( TPS') . ‘
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

~ Page 30 L . s continued. ..



Three Counties Academy Trust v

~ Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

‘1\' §

' ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Penswn costs and other post-retirement benefits ‘ :
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level

" percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government

Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As stated in notes to the
accounts, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign . between
employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised in the penod to which they relate. .

The LGPS is a funded multr -employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the prOJected unit credrt method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least tnenmally and are updated at each balance sheet
date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the. current semce costs _and the costs of scheme
mtroductxons, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff _costs . as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of _Financial
Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to dlscount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and
the actual return on the scheme assets is recogmsed in other recogmsed gains and losses

Actuanal galns and losses are recogmsed ummedlately in other recogmsed gains and losses

\Cntical accounting estimates and areas of judgement S
~Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, g

mclud\ng expectatlons of future events that are beheved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accountm_g estrmates and assumptlons

.. The ‘academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting. accountmg estimates
“and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions

that have a significant risk of causing a material adJustment to the carrying amounts of assets and llabllmes,
wrthm the next financial year are discussed below. : '

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defmed benefit hablhty depends on.a number of

- factors_that are determined on an actuanal basis_using a variety of assumptaons The assumptions used -in

determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptlons,
which are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, will impact the carrying amount of the pension
Liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation
performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuung the pensions liability at 31 August 2021.
Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuatron
would Impact on the carrymg amount of the pensron l1ab1hty :

DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS ; ;
' ' 31.8.22 - 31.8.21

Unrestricted Restricted “Total - Total

funds funds funds funds

: : £ : £ SRR £
*Grants : , ' - 9,745 9,745 9,619
~School trips etc ' - 116,037 L0116,037 6,794
Other grants and payments , - 120,147 -~ 120,147 101,564

- 245,929 245,929 117,977

The comparatwes include restricted fixed asset funds of £9,619 and restricted funds of £108,358 giving a total
of £117,977. . R

. Page 31 B o continued...




‘Three Counties Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
 for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 :

2. 'DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS - continued
Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:

31.8.22 31.8.21

: : £ £
Capital Grant R : 9,745 . 9,619
3. © FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS i
' E i £ , 31.8.22 31.8.21
" Unrestricted - Restricted Total " Total
funds - funds - funds funds -
S £ IS £ N £
DfE/ESFA grants : ERES : 5 S
‘General Annual Grant(GAG) : . 2,062,948 2,062,948 - 1,848,804
Other DfE/EFSA grant . , S - 5 N e ,
Others : : Sy .- . 80842 8084 40,178
Pupil premium - , g i 79,705 79,705 76,215
Teachers' pay - : e - - 23,378
Teachers’ pension : - i - : - 66,304

'MAT Conversion : A S 95000 . 95000 -

. 2,318,495 ‘2,318,495 2,054,879

: Other Government grant

Sy Other Local Authority Grants . 67,482 67,482 45,750
ARt | COVID-19 additional funding (DfEIESFA)s St " : ‘ .
S ~ Other DfE/ESFA Covid- 19fundmg ' ’ - 17,383 17,383 2,018
G Catch up premium - . : - SREE VA - 27,560
S 84865 84865 75337

COVID-19 addltlonal fundmg (non- DfE/ESFA) o ‘ P :
,OtherCOVlD 19 fundmg : S e T : T 34,950

- 2,403,360 2,403,360 2,165,166

LAl comparatiye amounts relate to the restricted general fund.

4. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES Lo
5 T 31.822  31.8.21

Unrestricted . Restricted - Total .= Total
funds : ~funds - funds ‘ funds

R , £ R £ £
Fundraising events - - 623 . 623 731
Room and building hire 10,370 - 0010,370 24,394
10,370 ' 623 10,993 : 25,125

: The comparatwes mclude unrestncted funds of £24,394 and restricted general funds of £731 giving a total of
- £25,125.
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Three Counties Academy Trust

o

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

5.5. - INVESTMENT INCOME

31.8.22

Page 33 .

‘ 31.8.21
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
. funds funds funds “funds
£ £ £ : £
Deposit.account interest : 52 - 52 18
All comparative amounts relate to the unrestricted fund.
6. EXPENDITURE : : s
: : s 31.8.22 . 31.8.21
, - Non-pay expenditure o
Staff i i Other ;
costs - Premises costs “Total Total
: £ CUE £ £ £
‘Charitable activities L : ' '
Academy'’s educational operations . : i ONEE S
Direct costs 1,357,073 48,185 368,582 1,773,840 1,610,533
Allocated support costs 478,762 154,723 212,682 846,167 584,009
1,835,835 « = - 202,908 581,264 2,620,007 = 2,194,542
~Net income/ (expenditure) is stated after charging/(crediting):
S31.8.22 31.8,21
. . N S £
Auditors’ remuneration 12,250 10,250
Other non-audit services <900 1,180
Depreciation - owned assets 64,874 65,589
Operating leases . 25,576 22,42
7. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS - o :
S DIENTAY : . : S 31.8.22 - 31.8.21.
Unrestricted ~ Restricted Total Total -
funds funds funds funds.
£ £ £ £
Direct costs =~ e 27 1,773,813 1,773,840 1,610,533
Support costs - , : - - 846,167 /846,167 584,009
27 2,619,980 2,620,007 2,194,542
31.8.22 31.8.21
"Total Total
, £ £
- Analysis of support costs g '
Support staff costs - 478,762 330,022
Depreciation 16,688 17,404
Premises costs 154,723 82,751
- Other support costs 135,461 142,402
Governance costs - 60,533 11,430
Total support costs 846,167 584,009

continued...




Three CountiesAcademv Trust

Notes to the Financial Statement§ - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

SV A

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS - continued

The comparatwes include restncted fixed asset funds of £75,208 and restricted funds of £2,119,334 giving a_

total of £2,194,542.

STAFF ,COSTS . :
R 31.8.22 31.8.21
, ‘ : f £ £
Wages and salaries : , : : 1,348,733 1,242,597
Social security costs , Vi : S 136,218 128,607
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes IR 338,969 318,568
S i 1,823,920 1,689,772
Supply teacher costs - S ‘ i i : : 11,915 22,034
1,835,835 1,711,806

- No non-statutory/ non-contractual amounts are included in other Staf,f costs.

The average number of persons (lncludlng senior management team) employed by the academy trust dunng

the year was as follows:

R : R ; 31.8.22

Teachers EaT ' ' 21

' Administration and support : . : 22
Management , Dl o : 4
47

~ ‘ : ‘ . 31.822
- £60,001-£70,000 : S 1
© £80,001 - £90,000 o : S -
£90,001 - £100,000 ' THIE IR : 1
2

31.821

g
17

4

4

“The number of employees whose employee beneﬁts (excludmg employer penswn costs) exceeded £60 000 was:

31821
1
1

2

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and members of the -senior
management -team .as follows the Executive Headteacher, Head of School, .Chief Financial Officer and
Executive Leader for Safeguarding and Inclusion. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions) received .by key management personnel for theur services to the academy trust was

| -£344,509 (2021 £330,369).

A
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Three Counties Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

\, 9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other beneﬁts from an employment with the

academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration. in respect of services they
* provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

& ' iy 2022 2021
D Racic . Staff Gov Remuneration £45,000 - £50,000 £40,000 - £45,000
' ~ Employers Pension ~ £10,000 - £15,000 ~  £10,000 - £15,000
: t Contributions -~~~ ‘ ‘ :
M Farmer : - 'Headteacher -~ Remuneration " £90,000.- £95,000 .£85,000 - £90,000
: ~ Employers Pension  £20,000 - £25,000 £20,000 - £25,000
Contributions o
10, TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS‘ INSURANCE PN : R : ‘ R

, In accordance with normal commercral practlce the Academy has purchased insurance to protect Governors
and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business.
The insurance provides cover up to £1,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31 . August

‘ 2022 is-included in the total insurance cost. : :

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an

alternatlve to msurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees . -

-and offlcers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business,
i and prowdes cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees. and offlcers 1ndemn|ty :
element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

11. COMPARATIVES‘ FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES ;
' f R Restricted

Unrestricted Fixed  Restricted :
General -~ Asset General - Total
furd Fund Fund ~ funds
, £ SO £ g
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM O Fraianl S T
Donations and capital grants : - 9619 108,338 - 117,977
- Charitable actwit:es ' '
Funding for the academy's educatlonal SO 3 L L =
operations L b Sl 2,165,166 2,165,166
Other trading activities ST gg 308 i gy 25,125
Investment income ‘ P 3 S 18 PR i : - A8
Total e 24412 9619 2274255 2,308,286
EXPENDITURE ON
Charitable activities : : 3 i 4
Academy's educational operations 490 75,208 2,118,844 - 2,194,542
Total BN B 490 75,208 2,118,844 2,194,542
NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) 23,922 (65,589) - 155,411 A ‘,113,744‘
Other recognised gains/(losses) : ‘ k : S
Actuarial gains on defined benefit schemes : - SRR - 749,000 - ~49,000

Page 35 : ' : centinued.._.




~ Three Counties Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements . continued
. for the Year Ended 31 August 202

COMPARATIVES Fi OR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES - continued

1.

12,

Net movement in funds

“RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS

Total funds brought forward

S TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COST

At 1 Sepfember 2021 and 31 August 2022

- DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2021 L
\Charge for year

At 31 August 2022

NET BOOK VALUE ,
At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

cosT
At 1 September 2021 and 31 August 2022
DEPRECIATION

At 1 September 2021
Charge for year -

At 31 August 2022

'NET BOOK VALUE
TUAL 31 August 2022

e At 31 Auguét 2Q21

Freehold property includes non depreciating land costing £411,269 (2021: £411,269).

7 Restricted :
Unrestricted Fixed Restricted
General ~ Asset - General Total
fund Fund Fund funds
£ £ £ £
23,922 (65,589) 204,411 162,744
166,722 3,132,176 (970,304) 2,328,594
190,644 3,066,587  (765,893) 2,491,338
; Improvements
Freehold ‘ to 7+ Plant and
property property . machinery
£ £ £
2,820,531 827,201 4,711
469,806 111,484 4
48,186 16,544 i
517,992 1128,028 : 4,711
2,302,539 699,173 g
2,350,725 715,717 :
Fixtures - e
~and Computer
fittings equipment Totals
£ £ ot
128,381 67,760 3,848,584
128,237 67,759 781,997
144, . 64,874
128,381 67,759 846,871
: 13,001,713
144 1 3,066,587
tontiuued...
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$ 13. DEBTORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Three Counties Academy Trust

‘Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
: for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

31.8.22 1 31.8.21

, : : £ £
Trade debtors A e . S9,939 7,929 -
VAT s S : 11,503 7,042
‘ Prepayments and accrued income R : 49,308 45,602
| | 70,750 60,573
- 14.  CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAll e :
: : : 31.8.22 31.8.21
L e : _ £ PRI
“Trade credltors : : ‘ AT F 097,223 22,825
Social security and other taxes S : §E 72,197 65,347
Deferred income S T i 18,400 63,361
Accrued expenses : : : Foia : 83,205 4,257
271,025 155,790
: Deferred Ihcome
s S e 31.8.22 31.8.21
Deferred income at1 September , {3 Ca 63,361 32,595
Resources deferred i intheyear ,‘ : 18,400 63,361
Amounts released from previous years FUNSEE : : o (63,361) (32,595)
Deferredbin'come ait 31 August b . sinR : 018,400 63,361

Deferred income relates to momes collected in advance for tnps takmg place after the year end.

=15, MEMBERS LIABILITY

“Each member of the academy trust undertakes to contnbute to the assets of the company-in the event of it .
being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount
-as may be requlred not exceeding £10 for the debts and ilabllmes contracted before they cease to be a
member ~ ;

16.  ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS ,
s , o 31.8.22

: T Restricted :
Unrestricted .~ Fixed . Restricted = 3
General Asset ~General - Total
fund .- Fund - Fund funds
e £ £ £ - £
" Fixed assets - 3,001,713 - 3,001,713
Current assets - 201,040 - 288,937 489,977
Current liabilities - - (271,025)  (271,025)
~'Pension liability - - (102,000) .(102,000)
o 201,040 3,001,713 (84,088) . 3,118,665
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16. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS continued

_Comparative information in res’pect of the preceding period is as follows:

: -31.8.21
: : - Restricted :
.. “Unrestricted - Fixed Restricted
General Asset General Total
fund Fund =~ Fund funds
F ~ £ £ £ £
_Fixed assets : o R 3,066,587 - = 3,066,587
Current assets , : 190,645 - - EEER 36,896 227,541
Current liabilities : o - - (1585,790) {(155,790)
Pension liability , ‘ - - Ce (647 000) (647,000)
-.190,645 3,066,587 (765,894) - 2,491,338
©17.  MOVEMENT IN FUNDS ;
» e : : Net : :
v movement . At
At 1.9.21 in funds 31.8.22
Restncted general funds R i G Bp
. Restricted General Fund ‘ (151,026) 147,435 (3,591)
- Other DfE/ESFA grants : - 11,703 11,703
. Restricted Pension Fund ' ' Lk - (647,000) 545,000 (102,000) -
. DfE/YPLACapitalGrants . /500,355 -1(11,973) 488,382
' - Conversion and depreciation , 2,350,725  (48,185) . 2,302,540
Capital expenditure from GAG e : 72,182 - (1,730) - 70,452
"‘Capital expenditure from other donations. Sk 143,325 (2,986) 140,339
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Pupil premium : A 20,621 . (10,821) 9,800
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Covid-19 funding : R 8,200 (8,200) : e
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Catch-up premium e A 3,311 (3,311) S
-2,300,693 616,932 2,917,625
<" “Unrestricted fund ‘ P TR -
~Unrestricted General fund . : 190,645 10,395 -201,040
TOTAL FUNDS Cini v 4 (e 12,491,338 627,327 3,118,665
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17. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Net movement in funds, inéluded in the above are as follows:

‘Restricted general funds
‘Restricted General Fund

Other DfE/ESFA grants

Other Restricted.

Restricted Pension Fund

DfE/YPLA Capital Grants

Conversion and depreciation

Capital expenditure from GAG

Capital expehditure from other donations
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Pupil premium
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Covid-19 funding

- Other DfE/ESFA grants - Catch-up premium

Unrestricted fund

L ~Unrestricted General fuhd

"TOTAL FUNDS

ComparatiVes for movement in funds

Restricted general funds

Restricted General Fund

Restricted Pension Fund

" DfE/YPLA Capital Grants

Conversion and depreciation

Capital expenditure from GAG )
Capital expenditure from other donations
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Pupil premium
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Covid-19 funding

Other DfE/ESFA grants - Catch-up premium

Other COVID-19 funding

Unrestrigted fund
Unrestricted General fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Movement

Incoming "Resources Gains and
resources ‘expended losses in funds
£ £ £ £
2,062,950 (1,915,515) - 147,435
175,842 (164,139) - - 11,703
304,287 (304,287) s s
, - (42,000) 587,000 545,000
9,745 (21,718) - (11,973)
- (48,189) (48,185) -
- (730 - (1,730)
S - (2,986) - (2,986)
79,705 (90,526) - (10,821)
17,383 . (25,583) - (8,200)
- 33N - (3,311)
2,649,912 (2,619,980) 587,000 616,932
10,422 @7) - 10,395
2,660,334 (2,620,007) 587,000 627,327
Net
i ~ movement At
o At1.9.20 infunds  31.8.21
S £ £
. (301,351) 150,325 (151,026)
(673,000) 26,000 (647,000)
512,982 {12,627 500,355
2,398,910 (48,185) 2,350,725
73,973 (1,791) 72,182
146,311 (2,986) 143,325
e 20,621 20,621
4,047 (4,047) o
s 3,311 3,311
: 8,200 8,200
2,161,872 138,821 2,300,693
166,722 23,923 190,645
2,328,594 162,744 2,491,338
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17. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS contmued

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement
resources - expended losses “in funds
, : £ R X £ £
Restricted general funds A ' ‘ : i
Restricted General Fund ‘ 1,848,803 - (1,698,478) e "150,325
Other DfE/ESFA grants , 40,178 (40,178) ‘ - -
Other Restricted . 154,849 .(154,849) - S
Restricted Pension Fund : e (23,000) - 49,000 26,000
~ DfE/YPLA Capital Grants : 9,619 . (22,246) - (12,627)
- Conversion and depreciation . - : : : - (48,185) ' - (48,185)
Capital expenditure from GAG o P TRgCRE S (1,791) - C(1,791)
_Capital expenditure from other donations e - (2,986) - (2,986)
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Pupil premium +76,215 (55,594) : - -20,621
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Covid-19 funding - 22,018 (6,065) = S4,047)
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Teachers'pay 23,378 (23,378) . e
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Teachers' pension 66,304 . (66,304) : = i
Other DfE/ESFA grants - Catch-up premlum o 27,560 - (24,249) i 23,3
; Other COovID-19 fundmg 034,950 (26,750) e 8,200
2,283,874 (2,194,053) 49,000 138,821
\ \.Unrestncted fund : L ‘ S
Unrestncted General fund : 24,412 (489) . 23,923
TOTAL FUNDS o : ;2,308,286' (2,194,542) 49,000 . 162,744

The: specrﬁc purposes for whrch the funds are to be apphed are as follows

-.Under the fundmg agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subJect foa hmlt on the
- amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2022. General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used
for the normal runmng costs of the Academy : ,
- Other DfE/ESFA Grants: are utilised for the purposes :ntended by the donor '
- Other Restricted General Funds: include payments made towards Academy trips.
-~ The Pension Fund: is the surplus/(deficit) in the Local Government Pension Scheme.
- Restncted Fixed Asset Funds: include the fixed assets transferred on conversion to Academy, capltal
i grants, additions and depreciation,
om Unrestncted Funds: are all those income and expenses for generat use in the Academy

18. PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The academy trusts employees belong to two pnnclpal pension schemes: the Teachers Pens1on Scheme

England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for

non-teaching staff, which is managed by Worcestershire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined
\ benefrt schemes .

The latest actuanal valuation of the TPS related to the penod ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS to the
period ended 31 March 2019..

Contributions amounting to £37 872 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2021 - £34 572) and are

included wrth\n credrtors
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18.

\ P_ENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued
. Teachers' pension scheme

' The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the

Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS followmg enrolment :

“The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and /employer makes contributions, as a 'percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retlrement and other pension benefits are pa\d

by public funds provided by Parhament

‘Valuation of the teachers' pension scheme

‘The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, ‘conducts’a tormal actuarial review of the TPS in :
accordance with the Public Service Pensrons (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by

HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial

. scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many

other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016, The valuation
report was published by the Department for Educauon on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent consultatlon are; : o ‘

- employer contnbunon rates set at 23.68% of pensuonable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)
- - total scheme liabilities (penswns currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notvonal 1nvestments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, gwmg a notional past serv1ce !
deficit of £22, 000 million -

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return The current SCAPE rate is

2.4% above the rate of CPIl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess. of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
mcludmg earmngs growth is 4. 45% : d

The next valuatlon result is due to be 1mplemented from 1 Apnl 2024.

“The employers pensxon costs paid to TPS in the penod amounted to £237 192 (2021 - £225 869)
A copy of the valuatlon report and supportmg documentatlon ison the Teachers Pensmns website.

~~Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 the TPS is.an unfunded mult1 employer pensxon scheme. The academy

trust has accounted for_its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme The
academy trust has set out above the information avallable on the scheme

Local government penswn scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate . trustee-administered.
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £118,067 (2021: £106,694), of which.
employer's contributions ‘totalled £100, 298 (2021: £91,192) and employees' contributions totalled £17, 769
(2021: £15,502). The agreed. contnbutlon rates for future years are 18.5% for employers and between 5.5% and S
12.5% for: employees v

‘ Parhament has agreed at the request of the Secretary of State for Educatlon, to a guarantee that, in the
“event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities. would be met by Wi

the Department for Educatlon The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

As the scheme is in deficit, the School has entered mto an agreement with the trustees to make addmonal
contnbutlons in addition to nonnal funding levels
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"18.  PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

The rates payable over a three year period will be the Future Service Rate of 18.5% of payroll plus phased
lump sum deficit contributions starting at £43,500 for the year 2020/21 increasing by approximately 4% per
annum. The rate payable from 1 April 2023 will be further revised following the valuation of the Pension Fund
which will take place on 31 March 2022, : : : ' : :

The estimated current recovery period is 18 years.
The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Defined benefit
i pension plans
+31.8.22 31.8.21
~'Present value of funded obligations - L e S (1,270,000) (1,739,000)

Fair value of plan assets AP ST 1,168,000 1,092,000

(102,000)  (647,000)

Present vaiue of unfunded obligatibns

Deficit | , | S (102,000)  (647,000)

Net liability e (02,0000 (647,000)

o T‘h\e amounts '}e;ogniSed in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Defined benefit
_ pension plans

31.822  31.821

Current service cost - ' : L B : 133,000 104,000

Net interest from net defined benefit S ‘ . :

-asset/liability ‘ » AN : e . 10,000 11,000

- Past service cost : : : : G TR A . hE e
“-Admin expense ~ ' Lo SR 01,000 1,000

| | s 144,000 116,000

~Actual return on plén assets : : e e : (26,000) 162,000‘

Changes m the presér)t value of the defined benefit /bbligation are as follows:

Defined benefit -
-pension plans

31.8.22 - 31.8.21
: S ' ’ £ f

_Opening defined benefit obligation ' ' H 1,739,000 1,510,000
~Current service cost ’ 133,000 104,000
‘ Contributions by scheme participants 18,000 215,000
“Interestcost ; 29,000 27,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) ' , ' (632,000) - 97,000

Benefits paid - : ‘ : . £ (17,000) .. +(14,000)

el o o 1,270,000 1,739,000
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18.

Actuarial gaf_hé/(losSgs) : S 587,000

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS --continued

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit
- pension plans

31.8.22 31.8.21
, : ; £ £

‘Opening fair value of scheme assets 1,092,000 837,000
Contributions by employer ‘ - : 102,000 193,000
Contributions by scheme participants - R R i 18,000 °115,000
Expected retumn ' S : : 19,000 16,000
Actuarial gains/ (losses) ‘ C. G - (45,000) 146,000
Benefits paid ' PR , . (17,000) -(14,000)
Administration expenses ' DN (1,000) (1,000)

1,092,000

1,168,000

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

Defined benefit

31.8.22
£

587,000

‘The major categories of scheme assets as amounts of total scheme assets are as follows:

pension plans

31.8.21
.
49,000

49,000

; ‘ Defined benefit

pension plans

31.8.21

31.8.22
S i : ; £ £

Equities ' ; ‘ LT : AR 857,000 909,000
Bonds - Other ; R ‘ : 32,000 1,000
Property : ' / B 97,000 48,000
Cash/Liquidity ' : : S 21,000 27,000
Other - . ‘ : R 3 i 161,000 - 107,000

1,168,000 1,092,000
Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

: Co3an 31.8.21
Discount rate for scheme liabilities : 4.30% © 0 1,70%
Rate of increase in salaries ‘ 4.40% 4,20%

‘Inflation assumption (CPI) ' ‘ ~ 2.90% 2.70%
Rate of increase in pensions 3.00% - 2.80%
 Page 43 continued...







